
MEMORANDUM      

To: Board of Trustees 

 Twin Falls School District 411  

From:  Eva Craner, Director of Public Relations 

Re:  Policy Updates   

Date: October 14, 2019 

First Reading: 
ISBA Updates: 
1500 Board Meetings 
1610 Trustee Conflicts of Interest 
2335 Digital Citizenship and Safety Education 
2435 Advanced Opportunities 
2435F Advanced Opportunities Participation Form 
4120 Uniform Grievance Procedure 
4530F Crowdfunding Request Form 
5275 Adult Sexual Misconduct 
5395 Wistleblower 
5750 Employing Retired Teachers & Administrators 
8170P District-Owned Vehicles 
 
Administrative Updates: 
3010P Open Enrollment 
3720 School Climate Review 
4240 Distribution of Fund Drive Literature Through Students 
5100P1 Veteran’s Preference 
5850 Idaho State Veteran Employment Preference 
7406 Appeal of the Awarding of a Bid 
8605 Retention of District Records 
 



 
POLICY TITLE: 

 
Board Meetings 
 

 
POLICY NO: 1500     

PAGE 1 of 3 
 

 

 1500-1 (ISBA 3/19 UPDATE) 

Meeting Defined 
 
A meeting is defined as the convening of the Board of Trustees to make a decision or to 
deliberate toward a decision on any matter. Trustees may participate in Board meetings via 
electronic means, including telephonic or video conferencing devices, provided at least one 
member of the Board of Trustees or Superintendent is physically present at the meeting location. 
 
Regular Meetings 
 
Unless otherwise specified, all meetings will be held at Canyon Ridge High School room 301. 
Regular meetings shall be held at 7:00 PM or 5:00 PM as posted on public notice on the second 
Monday and the fourth Wednesday of each month. 
 
Emergency Meetings 
 
In the event of an emergency involving possible personal injury or property damage, immediate 
financial loss, or the likelihood of injury, damage, or loss, the Board may meet immediately and 
take official action without prior notification when the notice requirements would make such 
notice impracticable or increase the likelihood or severity of such injury, damage, or loss, and the 
reason for the emergency is stated at the outset of the meeting.  
 
Budget Meetings 
 
No later than 28 days prior to its regular July meeting, the Board shall have prepared a budget, in 
the form prescribed by the State Superintendent of Public Instruction, and shall hold a public 
hearing. At such public hearing or at a special meeting held no later than 14 days after the public 
hearing, the Board shall adopt a budget for the ensuing year. Notice of the budget hearing shall 
be posted and published as prescribed in Idaho Code. From the time noticed, a copy of the 
budget shall be available for public inspection during regular business hours. 
 
Special Meetings 
 
Special meetings may be called by the Chair or by any two Trustees. If the time and place of 
special meetings has not been determined at a meeting of the Board with all members present, 
then written notice of a special meeting, stating the purpose of the meeting, shall be delivered to 
each Trustee not less than 24 hours prior to the time of the meeting. Such written notice shall be 
posted conspicuously at the District Office or at the building where the meeting is to be held. 
Business transacted at a special meeting will be limited to that stated in the notice of the meeting. 
 
Executive Sessions 
 
Pursuant to Idaho Code, upon a 2/3 roll call vote recorded in the minutes of the meeting, the 
Board may hold an executive session after the Board Chair has expressly identified the specific 
legal authorization for holding an executive session and provided sufficient detail to identify the 



 1500-2 (ISBA 3/19 UPDATE) 

general purpose and topic of the executive session. However, the information provided shall not 
compromise the purpose of going into an executive session. Only in the event that Board 
vacancies, and not absences, prevent a 2/3 majority from being present, a simple majority vote to 
enter executive session may be called 
 
An executive session may be held for, and only for, the following purposes: 
 

1. To consider hiring a public officer, employee, staff member, or individual agent wherein 
the respective qualities of individuals are to be evaluated in order to fill a particular 
vacancy or need. Please note this does not apply to filling a vacancy in an elective office 
or deliberations about staffing needs in general.  
  

2. To consider the evaluation, dismissal, or disciplining of; or to hear complaint or charges 
brought against a public officer, employee, staff member or individual agent, or a student. 

 
3. To acquire an interest in real property that is not owned by a public agency. 

 
4. To consider records exempt from public disclosure. 

 
5. To consider preliminary negotiations involving matters of trade or commerce in which 

the Board is in competition with other governing bodies in other states or nations. 
 

6. To communicate with legal counsel and to discuss any legal ramifications and/or legal 
options for pending litigation or possible legal controversies not yet being litigated, but 
imminently likely to be litigated. The presence of legal counsel at executive session is not 
sufficient to satisfy this requirement. 

 
7. To communicate with a representative of the District’s risk management or insurance 

provider to discuss a pending claim or prevention of a possible claim imminently likely to 
be filed. The presence of a risk management or insurance provider at executive session is 
not sufficient to satisfy this requirement. 
 

8. To conduct deliberations regarding labor negotiations. Note: The Board may still 
deliberate regarding labor negotiations and may caucus regarding negotiations in 
Executive Session. However, all actual negotiations between the parties; such as the 
exchange of offers, counteroffers, and exchange of documents; must be conducted in open 
session. 

 
Except for making a determination to place a certified professional employee on probation, nNo 
action may be held for the purpose of taking any final action or making any final decisions 
except for making a determination to place a certified professional employee on probation.  
 
If only an executive session will be held, a 24-hour meeting and agenda notice shall include the 
date, time, place, items to be discussed, and the specific provision of law authorizing the 
executive session. The Board will not change the subject within the executive session to any 



 1500-3 (ISBA 3/19 UPDATE) 

subject not identified within the motion to enter executive session or to any topic for which an 
executive session is not provided.  
 

♦ ♦ ♦ ♦ ♦ ♦ ♦ 
 
Legal Reference: I.C. § 33-510 Annual Meetings – Regular Meetings – Board of Trustees 
 I.C. § 74-202 Open Public Meetings – Definitions 
 I.C. § 74-203 Governing Bodies – Requirement for Open Public 

Meetings 
 I.C. § 74-204 Notice of Meetings 
 I.C. § 74-205 Written Minutes of Meetings 
 I.C. § 74-206 Executive Sessions – When Authorized 
 I.C. § 74-206A Negotiations in Open Session 
 Idaho Open Meeting Law Manual, current edition July 2015 
 
Policy History: 
ADOPTED: 8/11/14 
REVISED: 1/11/16 
 5/13/19 



 
POLICY TITLE: 

 
Trustee Conflict of Interest 

 
POLICY NO: 1610   

PAGE 1 of 2 
 

 

1610-1 
 

A Trustee may not: 
 

1. use the trustee’s official power to further the trustee’s own interests; 
2. have a pecuniary interest directly or indirectly (except a remote interest) in any 

contract or other transaction pertaining to the maintenance or conduct of the 
School District.  A “remote interest” means: 
a. the trustee is a non-salaried employee of a nonprofit corporation; or 
b. the trustee is an employee or agent of a contracting party where the 

compensation of the trustee as an employee or agent consists entirely of fixed 
wages or salary; or 

c. the trustee is a landlord or tenant of a contracting party; or 
d. the trustee is a holder of less than one percent (1%) of the shares of a 

corporation or cooperative a contracting party ; AND 
e. the trustee discloses such remote interest to the Board of Trustees. 

3. accept any reward or compensation for services rendered as a trustee except as 
expressly provided by law; 

4. accept and award contracts involving the School District to businesses in which a 
trustee or  person related to him by blood or marriage within the second degree 
has a direct or indirect interest except when the procedures set forth in I.C. §§ 18-
1361 or 18-1361A are followed; 

5. be involved in the employment of a relative related by affinity or consanguinity 
within the second degree (the trustee shall be absent from the meeting while such 
employment is being considered and/or determined); 

6. employ the spouse of a Trustee when such employment requires or will require 
the payment or delivery of any School District funds, money, or property to such 
spouse except when the procedures set forth in I. C. § 33-507(3) are followed; 

7. enter into a contract in the trustee’s individual capacity, the effect of which is to 
create a personal interest which may conflict with the trustee’s public duty; 

8. accept a bribe for money, a promise, gift, or any other form of personal advantage 
or engage in a substantial financial transaction for the trustee’s private business 
purpose with a person whom the trustee inspects or supervises in the course of 
official duties; 

9. be a purchaser or vendor at any sale or purchase made by the trustee in the 
trustee’s official capacity; 

10. use public funds or property to obtain a pecuniary benefit for himself or herself; 
11. solicit, accept, or receive a pecuniary benefit as payment for services, advice, 

assistance, or conduct customarily exercised in the course of the trustee’s official 
business; 

12. use or disclose confidential information gained in the course of or by reason of the 
trustee’s official position or activities in any manner with the intent to obtain a 
pecuniary benefit for the trustee or any other person or entity in whose welfare the 
trustee is interested or with the intent to harm the District; 

13. appoint or vote for the appointment of any person related to him by blood or 
marriage within the second degree to any clerkship, office, position, employment 



 1610-2 

or duty, when the salary, wages, pay or compensation of such appointee is to be 
paid out of public funds or fees of office or appointment; or furnish employment 
to any person whose salary, wages, pay or compensation is to be paid out of 
public funds or fees of office, and who is related by either blood or marriage 
within the second degree to any other public servant making or voting for such 
appointment.   

 
Relation by blood within the second degree includes grandparents and grandchildren.  Laterally, 
it includes brothers and sisters. 
 

♦ ♦ ♦ ♦ ♦ ♦ ♦ 
 
Legal Reference: I.C. § 33-507 Limitation upon authority of trustees 

 I.C. § 18-1359 Use public position for personal gain 
 I.C. § 18-1361 Self-Interest contracts - exception 
 I.C. § 18-1361A Uncompensated appointed public servant – relative of 

public servant -- exceptions 
 I.C. § 59-20174-501 Officers Not to be Interested in Contracts 
 I.C. § 59-20274-502Officers Not to be Interested in Sales Remote Interests 
 I.C. § 74-503  Officers Not to be Interested in Sales 
Policy History 
ADOPTED: 8/11/14 
ISBA 
REVISED: 8/10/15 



 
POLICY TITLE: 

 
Digital Citizenship and Safety 
Education 
 

 

 
POLICY NO: 2335   

PAGE 1 of 2 
 

 

 2335-1   
 

 
The Superintendent or designee will endeavor to see that District students are educated on 
network etiquette and appropriate online behavior, including cyber-bullying awareness, digital 
citizenship, and online safety. Students will receive instruction at the secondary level as 
appropriate to the educational and developmental needs of students. 
 
The Superintendent or designee will provide professional development, training, and resources 
for teachers, administrators and other staff members responsible for supervising students’ 
internet use in the following areas: 
 

1. Monitoring of student online activities. 
2. Instruction of students in proper network etiquette. 
3. Instruction of students in discerning among online information sources and appropriate 

materials. 
4. Bullying and cyber-bullying awareness and response, in accordance with the District’s 

bullying policy. 
5. Instruction of students on appropriate interaction in social networking websites and chat 

rooms. 
6. Instruction of students on safe use of email, chat rooms, and other direct electronic 

communication. 
 

The District may use the following methods of providing instruction on appropriate online 
behavior and cyber-bullying awareness: 
 

1. Incorporation of instruction into course objectives or daily lessons of planned instruction, 
as appropriate. 

2. Class assemblies or special instruction given in the school library or media center. 
3. Special technology courses that are required for students at various grade levels. 
4. Online tutorial programs required in order for students to use a district network account. 

 
The IT Coordinator or designee will also make resources available to parents/guardians on 
teaching students about acceptable internet use, appropriate online behavior, network etiquette, 
cyber-bullying awareness and response, and appropriate use of social networking websites and 
chat rooms. 
 

♦ ♦ ♦ ♦ ♦ ♦ ♦ 
 

Cross Reference: 3270 District Provided Access to Electronic Information, 
Services, and Networks 

 
   3295P Hazing, Harassment, Intimidation, Bullying, Cyber Bullying, 

Menacing 



 2335-2   

   5265 Employee Responsibilities Regarding Student Harassment, 
Intimidation, and Bullying 

 
Legal Reference: I.C. § 18-917A Student Harassment – Intimidation - Bullying 
 P.L. 110-385   Broadband Data Services Improvement Act 
 Children’s Internet Protection Act (CIPA) 47 U.S.C. § 254(h)(5)(B)-(C), 

254(l) 
 Internet Safety 20 U.S.C. § 6777 
 Children's Internet Protection Act Certifications Required Internet Safety 

Policy 47 C.F.R. § 54.520(c)(1)(i); 
   Technology Taskforce: Final Taskforce Recommendations 
Policy History: 
ADOPTED: 8/11/14 
  
REVISED: 8/10/15 



 
POLICY TITLE: 

 
Advanced Opportunities 

 
POLICY NO:  2435 

PAGE 1 of 4  
 

 

 2435-1 (ISBA 8/18 UPDATE) 
 

The District provides opportunities for students to begin earning credit for college and vocational 
programs and/or to take advanced placement or other college credit-bearing or professional 
certificate examinations while they attend school in the District.  
 
Participation in the District’s advanced opportunities program requires parent and student 
agreement to program requirements and completion of the District’s State Department of 
Education's participation form documenting the program requirements found in 2435F. 
 
In order to ensure that students have a chance to participate in advanced opportunity programs, 
the Board hereby directs the Superintendent to establish procedures with timelines, requirements 
for participation, requirements for financial transactions, and transcription of credits.  

 
Definitions 
 
"Credit" means middle level or high school credit. 
 
"Dual credit" means credit awarded to a student on his or her secondary and postsecondary 
transcript for the completion of a single course. Students may be allowed dual credit when ap-
proved in advance.  
 
"Full credit load" means at least 12 credits per school year for grades 7 through 12 or the 
maximum number of credits offered by the student's school during the regular school day per 
school year, whichever is greater.  
 
"Overload course" means a course taken that is in excess of a full credit load and outside of the 
regular school day, including summer courses 
 
"School year" means the normal school year that begins upon the conclusion of the spring 
semester leading up to the break between grades and ends upon the beginning of the same break 
of the following year. 
 
Fast Forward Program 
 
The State’s Advanced Opportunities funding, known as the Fast Forward program, provides 
students in the District with $4,125 to use toward overload courses, dual credits, college credit-
bearing examinations, and career technical certificate examinations, and federal registered 
workforce training programs that lead to regional ‘in demand’ jobs.  
 
Students may access these funds in grades 7 through 12 for: 

 
1. Overload courses, in an amount which may not exceed $225 per overload course. A 

student must take and successfully be completing a full credit load within a given school 



 2435-2 (ISBA 8/18 UPDATE) 

year to be eligible for funding of an overload course. An overload course must be taken 
for high school credit to be eligible for funding. 
 

2. Eligible dual credits, in an amount which may not exceed $75 per one dual credit hour. 
 

3. Eligible postsecondary credit-bearing or career technical certificate examinations. 
 

4. Career technical education (CTE) examinations that lead to an industry-recognized 
certificate, license, or degree, including assessment, that lead to a badge recognized by 
the Division of Career Technical Education 
 

5. Eligible CTE workforce training courses up to $500 per course and $1,000 per year.  
Eligible training courses and costs will be maintained by the State Department of 
Education. 

 
 
To qualify as an eligible overload course for the program, the course must be offered by a 
provider accredited by the organization that accredits Idaho high schools and be taught by an 
individual certified to teach the grade and subject area of the course in Idaho. Eligible 
examinations include advanced placement (AP), international baccalaureate (IB), college-level 
examination program (CLEP), and career-technical examinations.  
 
The District shall make reasonable efforts to ensure that any student who considers participating 
in the District’s advanced opportunities program understands the challenges and time necessary 
to succeed in the program. The District shall make such efforts prior to a student’s participation 
in the program. 
 
Parents of participating students may enroll their child in any eligible course, with or without the 
permission of the District, up to the course enrollment limits described in this policy. Each 
participating student's transcript shall include the credits earned and grades received by the 
student for any courses taken pursuant to this policy. For an eligible course to be transcribed as 
meeting the requirements of a core subject, as identified in administrative rule, the course must 
meet the approved content standards for the applicable subject and grade level. 
 
The District shall establish timelines and requirements for participation in the program, including 
implementing procedures for the appropriate transcription of credits, reporting of program 
participation, and financial transaction requirements. 
 
A student who has earned 15 postsecondary credits using the advanced opportunities program 
and wishes to earn additional credits must first identify his or her postsecondary goals. Advisors 
shall counsel any student who wishes to take dual credit courses that the student should ascertain 
for him/herself whether the particular postsecondary institution that he or she desires to attend 
will accept the transfer of coursework under this section 
 



 2435-3 (ISBA 8/18 UPDATE) 

The District will collaborate with publicly funded institutions of higher education in Idaho to 
assist students who seek to participate in dual credit courses or graduate high school early by 
enrolling in postsecondary courses. 
 
Challenging Courses 
 
The Board hereby directs the Superintendent or designee to develop criteria by which a student 
may challenge a course. The Superintendent will present the criteria for challenging courses to 
the Board for approval. If a student successfully meets the criteria, then the student shall be 
counted as having completed all required coursework for that course. 
 
If a student fails to earn credit for any course or examination for which the State Department of 
Education has paid a reimbursement, the student must pay for and successfully earn credit for 
one similar course before any further reimbursements for the student can be paid. If a student 
performs inadequately on an examination for which the State Department of Education has paid 
a reimbursement, the building principal shall determine whether the student must pay for and 
successfully pass such examination to continue receiving State funding. Repeated and remedial 
courses or examinations are not eligible for funding through this program. 
 
Advanced Opportunities Scholarship 
 
Students who successfully complete grades 1 through 12 at least one year early may be eligible 
for an advanced opportunities scholarship. A student shall be eligible if he or she: 
 

1. Shows that he or she has met all of the graduation requirements of the District; and 
2. Completes grades 1 through 12 curriculums in 11 or fewer years.  
3. Applies within two years of graduating from a public school.  

 
A student is not required to graduate early and can choose to participate in dual credit or 
advanced placement classes upon meeting these criteria. 
 
If an eligible student requests an advanced opportunities scholarship, the student shall be entitled 
to such a scholarship which may be used for tuition and fees at any publicly funded institution of 
higher education in Idaho. The amount of such scholarship shall equal 35 percent of the 
statewide average daily attendance-driven funding per enrolled pupil for each year of grades 1-
12 curriculum the student avoids due to early graduation. 
 
The District shall collaborate with publicly funded institutions of higher education in Idaho to 
assist early-graduating students in enrolling in postsecondary or advanced placement courses 
held in high school. 
 

♦ ♦ ♦ ♦ ♦ ♦ ♦ 
 
Legal Reference: I.C. § 33-4601 Definitions 
 I.C. § 33-4602 Advanced Opportunities—Rulemaking 
 IDAPA 08.02.03.106 Advanced Opportunities 



 2435-4 (ISBA 8/18 UPDATE) 

Cross Reference: 2435F Advanced Opportunities Participation Form 
 
Other References: http://www.sde.idaho.gov/student-engagement/advanced-ops/index.html 
 
Policy History: 
Adopted on: 
ISBA 
Revised on: 11/12/18 

http://www.sde.idaho.gov/student-engagement/advanced-ops/index.html


Advanced Opportunities Participation Form       2435F 
 

 2435F-1 (ISBA 2016) 

This participation form allows students to participate in the Fast Forward program through the 
Idaho State Department of Education as authorized by Idaho Code 33, Chapter 46: Advanced 
Opportunities. By signing this form, the student and parent/guardian agree to the conditions and 
provisions of the program.  
 
Students are allocated a total of $4,125.00 to use in grades 7-12. Funds can be used towards: 

1. Overload courses; high school credits taken in excess of the full credit load offered by the 
public high school, up to $225.00 per course. Definitions of full credit load may vary 
between schools; 

2. Dual credits; a maximum of $75.00 per credit; and 
3. Examinations; Advanced Placement, International Baccalaureate, and College Level 

Examination Program, Professional Technical. 
4. Career Technical Education (CTE) examinations that lead to an industry-recognized 

certificate, license, or degree; 
5. Eligible CTE workforce training courses up to $500 per course and $1,000 per year; and 
6. Federal, registered workforce training programs that lead to regional “in demand” jobs 

 
Students should meet with their guidance counselor to develop a 4-, 5-, or 6-year learning plan 
that will help them maximize the benefits of this program according to the student’s college and 
career interests. Intentional selection of coursework is a critical element of this program. 
 
All courses paid for by Fast Forward must be transcribed on the student’s public high school 
transcript. 
 
The parent/student understands that he/she will be held responsible for tuition and fees incurred 
as a result of participation in courses or exams taken from a college/university or other provider, 
and will be responsible for complying with policies and procedures set forth by the provider. 
 
The Idaho State Department of Education will send payment for courses to the public Idaho post-
secondary institution or the student’s school District. Eligibility for payment is subject to the 
deadlines and procedures set forth by the District in partnership with course/exam providers.  All 
payment requests must be submitted through the Advanced Opportunities portal according to 
District guidelines. 
 
If a student fails to earn credit for a course paid for by Fast Forward, the student must 
subsequently pay for a “like” course on their own before he/she is eligible for further Fast 
Forward funding. If a student performs inadequately on an examination paid for by Fast 
Forward, the local school district will decide whether the student may continue utilizing Fast 
Forward funding, or if she/he must pay for the cost of a “like” examination before using further 
funds.  Fast Forward funds may not be used for repeated or remedial course work. 
 
With the approval of the District students can track expenditures of their allocation by creating 
an account in the Advanced Opportunities portal.  
 
This form will be retained by the District. 
 



Advanced Opportunities Participation Form       2435F 
 

2435F-2 

 

Student Name: ______________________________________________________________ 

Date: ___________________________ 

Student Signature: ___________________________________________________________ 

Date: ___________________________ 

Parent Name: _______________________________________________________________ 

Date: ___________________________ 

Parent Signature: ____________________________________________________________ 

Date: ___________________________ 

School Name: ___________________________________________  

School District: _______________________________________ 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

ADOPTED:  1/9/17 
REVISED:   



 
POLICY TITLE: 

 
Uniform Grievance Procedure 
 

 
POLICY NO: 4120   

PAGE 1 of 3 
 

 

 4120-1 (ISBA 2013) 

It is the Board’s desire that administrative procedures for settling complaints and grievances of 
any and all persons (i.e., students, patrons, hereinafter “Grievant”) be an orderly process within 
which solutions may be pursued. Further, it is the intent of the Board that the procedure will 
provide prompt and equitable resolution at the lowest possible administrative level. 
Additionally, it is the Board’s desire that each grievant be assured an opportunity for orderly 
presentation and review of complaints without fear of reprisal. Certified staff grievance refer to 
CBA, Policy 5900; classified staff grievance refer to Policy 5800/5800P. 

 
Grievance Procedure 
This grievance procedure should be followed if a grievant believes that the Board, its employees 
or agents have violated the grievant’s rights guaranteed by the State or federal constitutions, 
State or federal statutes, or Board policy. 
 
The District will endeavor to respond to and resolve complaints without resorting to this 
grievance procedure and, if a complaint is filed, to address the complaint promptly and equitably. 
The right of a person to prompt and equitable resolution of the complaint filed hereunder shall 
not be impaired by the person’s pursuit of other remedies. Use of this grievance procedure is not 
a prerequisite to the pursuit of other remedies, and use of this grievance procedure does not 
extend any filing deadline related to the pursuit of other remedies. 
 
Grievances will be processed according to the step-by-step process outlined below. However, if 
a person designated to hear a grievance is the subject of the grievance, the grievance process will 
begin at the next highest step and the process shall be modified as needed to meet the objectives 
of the Grievance Procedure. If a grievance is directly based on official Board action, the 
grievance shall be directed to the Clerk of the Board. The grievance may be heard by the Board 
at the sole discretion of the Board. 

 
Level 1: Informal 
A grievant with a complaint is encouraged to first discuss it with the teacher, counselor, or 
building administrator involved, with the objective of resolving the matter promptly and 
informally.  An exception is that complaints of sexual harassment should be discussed with the 
first line administrator that is not involved in the alleged harassment. 

 
Level 2: Principal 
If the complaint is not resolved at Level 1, the grievant may file a written grievance stating: 1) 
the nature of the grievance and 2) the remedy requested. \It must be signed and dated by the 
grievant.  The Level 2 written grievance must be filed with the principal within 60 days of the 
event or incident, or from the date the grievant could reasonably become aware of such 
occurrence. 

 
If the complaint alleges a violation of Board policy or procedure, the principal shall investigate 
and attempt to resolve the complaint within 30 school business days. If either party is not 
satisfied with the principal’s decision, the grievance may be advanced to Level 3 by requesting in 



 4120-2 (ISBA 2013) 
 

writing that the Director of Elementary Programs or the Director of Secondary Programs review 
the principal’s decision. This request must be submitted to the appropriate Director within 15 
days of the principal’s decision. 
 
If the complaint alleges a violation of Title IX, Title II, Section 504 of the Rehabilitation Act, or 
sexual harassment, the principal shall turn the complaint over to the Nondiscrimination 
Coordinator who shall investigate the complaint   The District has appointed Nondiscrimination 
Coordinators to assist in the handling of discrimination complaints. The Coordinator will 
complete the investigation and file the report with the appropriate Director within 30 school 
business days after receipt of the written grievance.  The Coordinator may hire an outside 
investigator if necessary.  If the Director agrees with the recommendation of the Coordinator, the 
recommendation will be implemented.  If the Director rejects the recommendation of the 
Coordinator, and/or either party is not satisfied with the recommendations from Level 2, either 
party may make a written appeal within 15 days of receiving the report of the Coordinator to the 
Superintendent. 
 
Level 3: Director of Elementary or Secondary Programs 
Upon receipt of the request for review, the Director shall schedule a meeting between the parties 
and the principal.  The parties shall be afforded the opportunity to either dispute or concur with 
the principal’s report. The Director shall decide the matter within 10 days of the meeting and 
shall notify the parties in writing of the decision.  If the Director agrees with the recommendation 
of the principal, the recommendation will be implemented.  If the Director rejects the 
recommendation of the principal, the matter may either be referred to an outside investigator for 
further review or resolved by the Superintendent. 
 
If either party is not satisfied with the decision of the Director, the Superintendent is the next 
avenue for appeal.  A written appeal must be submitted to the Superintendent within 15 days of 
receiving the Director’s decision. The Board is the policy-making body of the school, however, 
and appeals to that level must be based solely on whether or not policy has been followed.  Any 
individual appealing a decision of the Superintendent to the Board bears the burden of proving a 
failure to follow Board policy. 
 
Level 4: Superintendent 
Upon receipt of the request for review, the Superintendent shall schedule a meeting between the 
parties and the principal.  The parties shall be afforded the opportunity to either dispute or concur 
with the principal’s report.  The Superintendent shall decide the matter within 10 days of the 
meeting and shall notify the parties in writing of the decision.  If the Superintendent agrees with 
the recommendation of the principal, the recommendation will be implemented.  If the 
Superintendent rejects the recommendation of the principal, the matter may either be referred to 
an outside investigator for further review or resolved by the Superintendent. 
 
If either party is not satisfied with the decision of the Superintendent, the Board is the next 
avenue for appeal.  A written appeal must be submitted to the Board within 15 days of receiving 
the Superintendent’s decision.  The Board is the policy-making body of the school, however, and 
appeals to that level must be based solely on whether or not policy has been followed.  Any 



 4120-3 (ISBA 2013) 
 

individual appealing a decision of the Superintendent to the Board bears the burden of proving a 
failure to follow Board policy. 
 
Level 5: The Board 
Upon receipt of a written appeal of the decision of the Superintendent, and assuming the 
individual alleges a failure to follow Board policy, the matter shall be placed on the agenda of 
the Board for consideration not later than their next regularly scheduled meeting. A decision 
shall be made and reported in writing to all parties within 30 days of that meeting.  The decision 
of the Board will be final. 
 

♦ ♦ ♦ ♦ ♦ ♦ ♦ 
 
Procedure History 
ADOPTED: 8/11/14 
ISBA 2013 
REVISED: 12/14/15 
 9/12/16 



Twin Falls School District #411 
 4530F 

 4530F-1  

Crowdfunding Request Form 
  

Contact Person 
Name:   Date   
Job Title:   School  
Phone Number(s):        
 
Campaign Information 
Website to be used:   
Items Requested, include itemized list with estimated costs:   
  
  
  
  
  
Total funds targeted to be raised         $  
Recipient classroom, program and/or activity:  
Exact language to be included in the post and/or advertising for the crowdfunding campaign:  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
Campaign Start Date:                                                 End Date:    
Signatures 
If the effort seeks to obtain technology related items, I have consulted the coordinator of 
technology and media service, and the coordinator has confirmed the technology-related items 
for the crowdfunding are acceptable. 
 
 
I have read and agree to abide by Policy 4530 Crowdfunding. I understand that I must have the 
written permission of the building principal before I begin this crowdfunding webpage or effort. 
Signature: _______________________________________________ Date: _____________ 
Building Principal Signature: __________________________________Date: ______________ 



 

POLICY TITLE: 
 

Adult Sexual Misconduct 
 

POLICY NO: 5275  
PAGE 1 of 3 

 
 

 5275-1 (ISBA 9/19 UPDATE)  

This policy shall apply to all staff, contractors, and volunteers who have contact with students.  
 
For the purposes of this policy, sexual misconduct is defined as any sexual activity directed at a 
student, regardless of age, with the purpose of developing a romantic or sexual relationship. It 
includes activities that are: 
 

1. Physical and non-physical; 
2. Conducted in person or through other modes of communication; 
3. Conducted before, during, or after school; 
4. On District property or elsewhere; and 
5. Legal and illegal. 

 
  Illegal sexual misconduct is characterized by sexual contact between an adult and a child under 
the age of 18 and includes explicit sexual conduct, solicitation of a minor child to participate in a 
sexual act, sexual exploitation and dissemination of sexual material harmful to minors.  Sexual 
misconduct also includes such inappropriate verbal conduct as sexual comments or questions, 
jokes, taunting, and teasing and such inappropriate physical conduct as kissing, hair stroking, 
tickling, and frontal hugging. 
 
Sexual misconduct is prohibited. Staff and volunteers who engage in sexual misconduct shall be 
subject to disciplinary activity, including termination. They may also be reported to law 
enforcement and/or the Department of Health and Welfare, as described in Policy 5260. 
 
To avoid the appearance of impropriety, staff should avoid singling students out for personal 
attention such as frequent hugging or other physical contact, the giving of gifts, frequent 
compliments directed toward a particular student, overly personal cards, notes, or electronic 
communications, or teasing that references gender or contains sexual innuendo.  Staff should take 
reasonable measures to avoid being alone with any student unless there is a legitimate, work-
related need to be alone with the student. In cases such as before or after school tutoring, teachers 
may ask another teacher to be present in the classroom, or such tutoring may be conducted in a 
less private area with other adults present, such as in the school library. 
 
The District recognizes that some student interactions occur outside the classroom.  School 
employees and volunteers should avoid the appearance of impropriety by refraining from the 
following behavior: 
 

1. Conducting ongoing, private conversations with individual students that are unrelated to 
school activities or the well-being of the student and take place in locations inaccessible 
to others; 

2. Inviting a student or students for home visits without informing parents; 
3. Visiting the homes of students without the knowledge of parents; 



 5275-2 (ISBA 9/19 UPDATE)  

4. Inviting students for social contact off school grounds without the permission or 
knowledge of the parents; and 

5. Transporting students in personal vehicles without the knowledge of parents or 
supervisors. 

 
Reporting Sexual Misconduct 
 
Any staff member, contractor, or volunteer who has reasonable cause to believe a staff member, 
contractor, or volunteer has engaged in misconduct or that any other adult has engaged in sexual 
misconduct on District property or at a District event shall report the misconduct to his or her 
supervisor, who shall notify the Superintendent or the Superintendent’s designee.  The matter 
shall be investigated in accordance with Policy 3290. Investigation of any report of sexual 
misconduct shall include an investigation of whether the incident constitutes a violation of Title 
IX. 
 
The incident shall also be reported to the District Title IX Coordinator to be investigated and 
addressed in the same manner as a report of sexual harassment.   
 
The individual with reasonable cause to believe sexual misconduct has occurred shall also report 
the incident in accordance with Policy 5260, if applicable. 
 
False Reports 
 
Making a knowingly false report of sexual misconduct is prohibited and may result in the 
termination of a staff member or volunteer who makes such a report or in the suspension or 
expulsion of a student who makes such a false report.   
 
Distribution of Policy and Training 
 
This policy shall be posted on the District website and provided to all new employees upon 
hiring and to all volunteers. The employee or volunteer shall sign an acknowledgment, to be 
retained by the District, indicating that they have received and reviewed a copy of this policy. 
 
The District shall provide training on preventing and reporting sexual misconduct to all staff who 
have contact with students. 
 
 
Cross References: 3290  Sexual Harassment and Intimidation of Students 
 5240 Sexual Harassment and Sexual Intimidation in the Workplace 
 5260 Abused and Neglected Child Reporting 
 5280 Professional Standards Commission (PSC) Code of Ethics 
 5325 Employee Use of Social Media Sites Including Personal Sites 
 
Legal References: 20 U.S.C. § 1681, et seq. Title IX of the Educational Amendments 



 5275-3 (ISBA 9/19 UPDATE)  

 A Training Guide for Administrators and Educators on Addressing Adult 
Sexual Misconduct in the School Setting, Readiness and Emergency 
Management for Schools, US Department of Education: Office of Safe 
and Healthy Students 

 
Policy History 
ADOPTED: 
ISBA 
REVISED: 



 

POLICY TITLE: 
 

Whistleblowing 
 

POLICY NO: 5395   
PAGE 1 of 2 

 

5395-1    (ISBA 9/19 UPDATE) 
 

 
The Board of Trustees expects employees of the District to be trustworthy and to conduct 
themselves in an honorable manner, abiding by all District policies and procedures and by all 
applicable State and federal laws and administrative rules. 
 
When District employees know or have reasonable cause to believe that serious wrongful 
conduct has occurred, they should report such wrongful conduct to the Superintendent or his or 
her designee. 
 
For the purposes of this policy, the term “wrongful conduct” shall mean: 
 

1. Theft or misuse of District funds, property, or resources; 
2. Fraud; 
3. Violation of federal and state laws or administrative rules; and/or 
4. Material violation of District policy or procedure aimed at protecting the health and safety 

of staff and students.   
5. Violation of the Code of Ethics 

 
Disclosure and Investigation 
 
Upon receiving a report of wrongful conduct, the Superintendent or designee shall take 
immediate steps to conduct an investigation. 
 
If the person alleged to have committed the wrongful conduct is the designee, the Superintendent 
shall conduct the investigation.  If the person alleged to have committed the wrongful conduct is 
the Superintendent, the investigation shall be addressed in accordance with Policy 4120. 
 
The Superintendent or designee shall maintain a written record of the allegation; conduct an 
investigation, refer the matter to law enforcement or other appropriate authorities, if applicable; 
and notify the Board of the allegation and of the results of the investigation. 
 
The Superintendent or designee shall attempt to protect the identity of a whistleblower, provided 
that doing so does not interfere with the investigation of the allegations or with the taking 
corrective action. 
 
Complaints of Retaliation 
 
The District shall not take adverse employment action against an employee who has notified the 
District of wrongdoing, allowing the District the opportunity to investigate and correct the 
misconduct. The District shall not take adverse action against an employee who has reported 
misconduct to another government agency or who has cooperated with an investigation of 
wrongful conduct.  Likewise, District employees are prohibited from retaliating against an 
individual for these actions 



 5395-2    (ISBA 9/19 UPDATE) 

There shall be no adverse employment action or retaliation against an individual who refuses to 
carry out a directive which he or she believes constitutes a violation of state or federal law or 
administrative rule.  
 
An employee who alleges they have been subject to retaliation in the form of adverse 
employment action may contest the action as specified in the appropriate employee grievance 
policy. The District shall investigate any complaints of such retaliation and take immediate steps 
to stop any retaliation.  
 
District employees who have engaged in retaliation shall be subject to discipline, which may 
include dismissal. 
 
These protections do not apply to cases in which an employee knew or reasonably ought to have 
known that the report is malicious, false or frivolous.   
 
Nothing in this policy is intended to interfere with legitimate employment decisions. 
 
The Superintendent shall establish any procedures necessary to implement this policy. 
 
This policy and any related procedures will  be published in employee handbooks. 
 

♦ ♦ ♦ ♦ ♦ ♦ ♦ 
 
Cross Reference:  5250 Certificated Staff Grievances 
  5800 Classified Employment, Assignment, and Grievance 
  5800P Classified Employee Grievance Procedure 
 
Legal Reference:  Idaho Code § 6-2101 et seq.  Idaho Protection of Public 

Employees 
 
 
Policy History 
ADOPTED: 
REVISED: 



 
POLICY TITLE: 

 
Employing Retired Teachers and 
Administrators 

 
POLICY NO: 5750   

PAGE 1 of 2 
 

 

 5750-1 (ISBA 2011) 

One of the Board’s personnel goals is to recruit, select and employ the best qualified personnel to 
staff the schools within the District. As such, retired employees who leave the District in good 
standing may be re-employed according to the following guidelines: 
 

1. The District may employ certificated teachers and administrators who are receiving 
retirement benefits from the public employee retirement system of Idaho (PERSI) for 
positions requiring such certification provided such individuals were not promised 
“rehire” by the District before their retirement was in effect. Said employees are 
hereinafter referred to as “retiree” or “retirees.” 
 

a. These employees shall be employed on a Standard Retired Teacher Contract or 
Standard Retired Administrator Contract form that has been approved by the State 
Superintendent of Public Instruction.  

 
2. Any employment contract between the District and retirees shall be separate and apart 

from the collective bargaining agreement or master agreement between the District and 
the local teachers association.   

 
3. Retirees employed consistent with this policy and state law shall accrue one (1) day per 

month of sick leave. No annual sick leave shall be accumulated unless additional sick 
leave has been negotiated between each individual retiree and the District at the time of 
employment. Sick leave accrued under Idaho Code § 33-1004H does not qualify for 
unused sick leave benefits under Idaho Code § 33-1228. 

 
4. The District will provide health insurance / life insurance benefits for retirees hired 

consistent with this policy.       
 

5. The District shall not employ certificated teachers and administrators who receive or 
received benefits under the previously existing early retirement program provided in now 
repealed Idaho Code 33-1004G. 

 
6. Retirees who qualify to be rehired are those who: A) have reached the Rule of 90; B) are 

not participating in the early retirement program; and C) are retired on or after 62 years of 
age; D) have never received a “promise of rehire” before their retirement date; and E) 
have received at least one payment from their PERSI retirement account;  
 

7. Employees hired pursuant to this policy and who are assigned to work in a specific 
district building will only be hired and placed into the building upon the approval and 
consent of the building principal as per Idaho Code 33-523.  

 
♦ ♦ ♦ ♦ ♦ ♦ ♦ 

 
Legal References: I.C. § 33-1004G ? (Now repealed) 
 I.C. § 33-1004H Employing Retired Teachers and Administrators 



 5750-2 (ISBA 2011) 

 I.C. § 33-51423 Principals to Determine new Staffing 
 I.C. § 33-513 Professional Personnel 
 I.C. § 33-1228 Severance Allowance at Retirement 
 I.C. § 59-1356 Reemployment of Retired Members 
 I.C. § 33-523 (???) 
 
Cross Reference: 5100 Hiring Process and Criteria  
 
Policy History 
ADOPTED: 8/11/14 
ISBA 
REVISED:  



PROCEDURE TITLE: District-Owned Vehicles PROCEDURE NO: 8170P 
  PAGE 1 of 4 
 

 8170P-1 (ISBA 2006) 

 
The Board adopts this procedure to establish guidelines, obligations, and expectations of 
employees who, within the scope of their employment, have occasion to operate District-owned 
vehicles and equipment, or personal vehicles for official District purposes. 
 
District Vehicles and Equipment 
 
Authorization for Use 
  
Twin Falls School District employees shall operate District-owned vehicles and equipment only 
when the employee: 
 

1. Is authorized by their position and/or supervisor to act as the operator of a vehicle or 
piece of equipment;  
 

2. Holds a valid Idaho operator’s license for each class of vehicle or piece of equipment 
they are approved to operate.  The District may verify license status by checking motor 
vehicle records; and 
 

3. Has demonstrated, to the supervisor's satisfaction, that they are qualified to operate the 
vehicle or piece of equipment. 

 
Responsibilities of Vehicle/Equipment Operator 
  
Employees operating District vehicles and equipment shall: 
 

1. Inspect vehicles or equipment before operating to ensure the vehicle or equipment will 
function in a safe manner; 
 

2. Refrain from eating or engaging in other activities which may distract an individual from 
safely operating a vehicle or piece of equipment; 

 
3. Operate such vehicles and equipment in a safe, responsible manner, and in compliance 

with State laws and regulations governing vehicle use; 
 

4. Pull off to a safe area and stop driving to use a cell phone in a vehicle; 
 

5. Be personally responsible for traffic fines and/or penalties, court appearances, and other 
personal judgments or penalties arising from their violation of traffic laws while 
operating such vehicles or equipment; 

 
6. Refrain from operating any such vehicles or equipment when under the influence of 

controlled substances, medications, or mental or physical conditions which could impair 
their ability to properly operate a vehicle or piece of equipment; 
 

7. Return such vehicles and equipment daily to the District facility designated for that 
vehicle or piece of equipment unless it is taken to the operator's residence as authorized 
in this procedure; 



 8170P-2 (ISBA 2006) 

 
8. If the vehicle or piece of equipment is taken to the operator’s residence as authorized by 

this procedure, the operator shall ensure the vehicle or equipment is made available for 
routine maintenance as well as unscheduled maintenance when required; 
 

9. Report any loss, redaction, or suspension of their operator license or endorsements status 
to their supervisor as soon as they are notified of the licensing status change; 
 

10. Report all accidents immediately to the supervisor and/or to the Risk Management 
Specialist so that they can be reported to the District’s insurance carrier.  All Commercial 
Driver’s License holders shall comply with federal and state laws regarding the reporting 
of accidents, citations, or driving convictions and shall immediately report such 
occurrences to their supervisor; 
 

11. Use of District fueling cards and facilities, maintenance and repair facilities, and supplies 
shall be limited to bona fide District vehicles and equipment.  District materials and 
facilities shall not be used for personal benefit; 
 

12. Not allow other persons to use their refueling card or request that others allow them to 
use refueling cards which are not assigned to them; and 
 

13. Be evaluated in connection with their use of District vehicles and equipment as part of 
their annual job performance review. 

 
Prohibited Conduct of Vehicle/Equipment Operator 
 
Any employee involved in one or more of the following circumstances while operating District 
vehicles and equipment will immediately lose their operational authorization: 
 

1. Unlawful use, distribution, dispensing, manufacture, or possession of a controlled 
substance; 

2. Operating any District vehicle or piece of equipment while under the influence of 
alcohol, any drug, or the combined influence of alcohol and any drug; 

3. Use of any District vehicle or piece of equipment for illegal or unauthorized purposes; 
4. Operating a vehicle or piece of equipment in a manner which endangers the safety or life 

of others; 
5. Any Clearly negligent use of District-owned vehicles or piece of equipment. 

 
Any employee convicted of who has engaged in any of the items listed in the above section of 
this procedure, regardless of whether it occurred while operating a District vehicle or piece of 
equipment, may be permanently prohibited from operating District vehicles and equipment, 
and/or subject to disciplinary action, up to and including termination.  
 
Emergency Call Out 
 
In specific instances, the Superintendent and/or department directors may establish specific 
positions and/or classes of employees who are subject to emergency callout. These employees or 
classes of employees may be assigned a District vehicle to keep at their personal residence in 
order to more quickly respond to emergency circumstances. Employees so designated, may be 
changed at any time by the Superintendent and/or department director without consultation or 



 8170P-3 (ISBA 2006) 

negotiation with the affected employee or classes of employees. When an employee is designated 
to have a District vehicle at their residence for emergency callout use, the vehicle shall not be 
used for personal purposes.  
 
Disposal of Vehicles and Equipment 
 
All vehicles and equipment shall be disposed of only by sales events and methods which are 
approved by the Board and by rules adopted by the state for disposal of surplus District property 
(Policy 9100). Each sales event must be approved individually by the Board. Revenue received 
from the sale of school buses will be placed in a separate account and used only for the purchase 
of school buses.  
 
Accident Management Procedures 
 
The Twin Falls School District establishes the following guidelines for reporting, investigating, 
and documenting all accidents, collisions, and incidents involving District vehicles and 
equipment: 
 

1. All accidents/collisions/vandalism (herein collectively referred to as “accidents”) 
involving District vehicles, regardless of the amount of damages or personal injuries 
sustained, shall be reported immediately to the driver’s supervisor and/or any other 
identified District personnel.  Failure to report an accident shall be cause for disciplinary 
action; 
 

2. Drivers shall report all school bus accidents to local school authorities and the 
appropriate law enforcement agency in accordance with Title 49, Chapter 13 of Idaho 
Code.  Subsequent to the accident or incident, a Uniform School Bus Accident/Injury or 
appropriate Incident Report Form shall be completed by the driver or transportation 
supervisor and submitted to the State Department of Education within 15 days. 
 

3. An employee involved in any accident while operating District vehicles or equipment 
may be required to submit to a drug and alcohol test.  Failure to submit to a drug and 
alcohol test; or testing positive for drug use; or prohibited levels of alcohol as outlined in 
applicable law; shall be subject to disciplinary action, up to and including termination; 

 
4. An accident report shall be completed within twenty-four (24) hours of any accident 

regardless of the amount of damage sustained to any District vehicle or equipment; 
 

5. All accidents shall be investigated by a designated District Safety Coordinator or his or 
her designee; 

 
6. All accidents involving any personnel injury and/or accidents for which the estimated 

damages exceed one-thousand dollars ($1,000) shall be reviewed by the Safety 
Committee.   

 
7. The Safety Committee shall hold a fact-finding meeting to determine if the accident was 

preventable or non-preventable. 
 

A. The driver involved in the accident has the right to attend the fact-finding meeting 
to explain the situation and answer questions of the Committee; 



 8170P-4 (ISBA 2006) 

B. The Committee shall inform the driver of their findings in a timely manner; and  
C. An employee may appeal the findings and recommendations of the Committee by 

following the appeals procedure outlined in the District Grievance Procedure 
(Policy 4120). 
   

8. Administrative actions shall be taken based on the findings and recommendations of the 
Committee as follows:  
 

A. If the accident was non-preventable, a statement to that effect shall be included in 
the employee’s personnel file and no disciplinary action will be recommended. 
   

B. If the accident was preventable, procedures of remediation and disciplinary action 
shall be implemented according to the degree of culpability, severity of the 
accident, and service record of the employee.   

 
9. Driver Education instructors shall not be disciplined under these driver accident 

guidelines for vehicle accidents resulting from the actions of student drivers who are 
operating District vehicles under the instructor’s supervision, as part of the District 
Driver Education course unless a valid investigation by the District or a court of law finds 
the instructor was grossly negligent in their instruction or driving supervision.      

 
Definitions 
 
"Equipment" for purposes of this procedure means utility vehicles, construction and lawn 
equipment. 
 
"Vehicle" for purposes of this procedure means buses, vans and passenger vehicles, 
maintenance and delivery trucks. 
 

♦ ♦ ♦ ♦ ♦ ♦ ♦ 
 
Cross Reference: 4120 Uniform Grievance Procedure 
  9100 Use and Disposal of School Property 
Other References:  Standards for Idaho School Buses and Operations 
 Idaho Department of Education, Idaho’s School Bus Driver Training 

Classroom Curriculum 
 
Procedure History 
ADOPTED: 8/11/14 
ISBA 2006 
REVISED: 2/9/15 
 10/10/16 



 
POLICY TITLE: 

 
Open Enrollment 

 
POLICY NO:  3010 

PAGE 1 of 3 
 

 

 3010-1 (ISBA 2018) 

A. Submitting the Form 
 

1. Varsity Sport Participation - A student who plans to participate in a varsity sport 
governed by the Idaho High School Activities Association (IHSAA) should 
review IHSSA rules prior to submitting an Open Enrollment Application. Certain 
school transfers will lead to a student’s being ineligible to play at the varsity level 
for one year. 

2. Open Enrollment Application forms are available at any Twin Falls District 
school.  Based on mutually agreed upon waivers, Open Enrollment Applications 
will be accepted at any time throughout the school year, although the general 
period for accepting applications will be January 1 to February 1 for the following 
school year.  Students who reside in the District and move out of their school 
attendance zone during the school year must initiate an Open Enrollment request 
to stay in their school. 

3. For students who reside in the Twin Falls School District, the parent/guardian 
completes the Open Enrollment Application form and submits it to the principal 
of their attendance zone school (home school). 

4. For students who reside outside the Twin Falls School District boundary, tThe 
parent/guardian completes the Open Enrollment Application form and submits it 
to the principal of the school they wish to attend (receiving school) and the 
parent/guardian must give notice to the home school. 

 
 
B. Review Approval Process 
 

1. Limited Opening - Applications will normally be considered on a “first-come 
first-served” basis.  However, in situations where openings are limited, the 
Principal may give priority if a student: 

 
• has a parent employed by the District; 
• was previously enrolled at the requested school in a prior year; 
• has a brother or sister enrolled at the requested school; 
• resides in the attendance area of another District school; or 
• has a unique situation or extraordinary circumstances. 

 
2. Factors which may cause an Open Enrollment Application to be denied include: 

 
a. a school, grade, or program(s) has lack of available classroom space 

and/or staff; 
b. the current enrollment is at or above the following: 

 
 Grade Class/Teacher Load Size 
 K-1 21 



 3010P-2 (ISBA 2018) 

 2-3 21 
 4-5 27 
 6-12 161 students per teacher per day 
 Special Education Resource 17  
 Developmental Preschool 15 
 Spec. Ed. Self-Contained An average of 7 students per classroom 
 English Language 21 per full-time ELL teacher 
 Learners (ELL) 
 Alternative High Schools 13 students per classroom 
 Alternative Middle Schools 6 students per classroom 

c. the student has been suspended or expelled, or has committed a 
disciplinary violation for which he/she could be suspended or expelled, 

d. the student has a history of documented disciplinary infractions; or 
e. it is determined that information on the Open Enrollment Application has 

been misrepresented or was incomplete. 
3. District resident approval process: 

a. A home school principal makes a recommendation to approve or not to 
approve the transfer by completing the appropriate section of the Open 
Enrollment Application form. 

b. The home school principal sends the form to the out-of-attendance area 
(receiving school) principal. 

c. The receiving school principal makes a recommendation to approve or not 
to approve the Open Enrollment request by completing the appropriate 
section of the Open Enrollment application form. 

4. Out-of-District approval process: 
a. A receiving school principal makes a recommendation to approve or not 

approve the transfer by completing the appropriate section of the Open 
Enrollment Application form. 

b. The receiving school principal keeps the form on file.  
 

C. Parent Notification 
 
1. When the application is submitted during the enrollment time period (January 1-

February 1, the principal will notify the parent/guardian of his/her decision prior 
to the start of the next school year. 

2. When the application is submitted outside of the open enrollment time period, 
notification must be made within 60 days after an application is accepted or prior 
to the start of the next school year. 

3. If the request for open enrollment is denied, the denial will include a written 
explanation.  If the application is denied because classroom capacity has been 
reached at the school of choice, the denial may include information about other 
schools in the district that are below capacity. 

4. The letter approving the request will inform the parents of the following: 
a. Parents must provide transportation or get student to nearest District bus 

stop, if space is available; 
b. State law requires reapplication on an annual basis; and 



 3010P-3 (ISBA 2018) 

c. Inappropriate behavior in violation of district policies may be grounds for 
removing the student during the school year. 

d. Special education, English Language Learners (ELL) or alternative school 
students must meet the requirements and the procedures established for 
those programs. 

 
 
DEFINITION 
 
School Days: include only those days when school is in session. 
 

♦ ♦ ♦ ♦ ♦ ♦ ♦ 
 
Policy History 
Adopted: 12/9/13 
ISBA  3/03 
Revised: 8/11/14 
  9/12/16 
 7/9/18 



 
POLICY TITLE: 

 
Distribution of Fund Drive Literature 
Through Students 
 

 
POLICY NO: 3430   

PAGE 1 of 1 
 

 

 3430-1  

Although many community drives are organized for raising funds for worthy nonprofit causes, it 
is the policy of the District to refrain from having the students, as student body members, used 
for such collection or dissemination purposes. 
 
Exceptions to this policy will be considered when recognized student- or school-affiliated 
organizations of the District request permission to participate in such activity. 
 

♦ ♦ ♦ ♦ ♦ ♦ ♦ 
Cross Reference: 3250 Distribution and Posting of Materials 
 4310 Contact with Students 
  
Policy History 
ADOPTED:  
ISBA 
REVISED:  



 
POLICY TITLE: 

 
School Climate 
 

 
POLICY NO: 3720   

PAGE 1 of 5 
 

 

 3720-1 (EMT 2001) 

This School District recognizes that the growth of a student, both academically and personally, 
reflects not only the educational programs and goals of the District, but also the atmosphere in 
which the student attends school. To the extent possible, this School District is committed to 
providing an educational setting where the students feel safe, are challenged to grow 
academically and personally, are treated with respect by the District personnel and other 
students, and are disciplined fairly by District personnel. 
 
To provide such an educational setting, this Board of Trustees has adopted policies and 
procedures, as mandated by the Idaho State Board of Education in the following areas: 
 
1. School Climate 
 
2. Discipline 
 
3. Violence Prevention 
 
4. Student Harassment 
 
5. Student Health 
 
6. Possessing Weapons on Campus 
 
7. Substance Abuse--tobacco, alcohol, and other drugs 
 
8. Suicide Prevention 
 
9. Drug-free School Zones 
 
10. Building Safety including Evacuation Drills 
 
11. Relationship Abuse and Sexual Assault Prevention and Response 
12. Miscellaneous 
 
The Board of Trustees will cause these policies and procedures to be reviewed on an annual 
basis to determine whether or not they are meeting the needs of the students, School District, 
and community. 
 

♦ ♦ ♦ ♦ ♦  
 
Legal Reference:  Idaho Code § 33-1612  
 IDAPA 08.02.03.160 
 
Policy History  
ADOPTED: 12/08/08 



 3720-2 (EMT 2001)  

EMT 
REVISED: 8/11/14 
  10/12/15 
  6/11/18 
 

ATTACHMENT: 
Annual Policy Review Checklist 



 3720-3 (EMT 2001)  

 

ANNUAL POLICY REVIEW CHECKLIST 
 

Topic Model Policy No. Policy Name Current 
Year 

School Climate 3720 School Climate  

 5120 Equal Employment Opportunity  

Discipline 3346 Restraint or Seclusion of Student  

 3750 Prohibition of Weapons  

 3370 Searches and Seizures  

 3550 Removal of Student During School Hours  

 3740 Student Expulsion/Denial of Enrollment  

 3360 Disciplining of Students with Disabilities  

 3362 Disciplining Students with Disabilities 
(IDEA) 

 

 3363 Disciplining Students with Disabilities 
(Section 504) 

 

 3750 Theft or Destruction of School Property  

 3311 Prohibition of Gang Activities  

 3760 Assault and Battery  

 3321 Student Drug, Alcohol and Tobacco Use  

Violence 
Prevention 

3730 Prohibition of Weapons  

 3370 Searches and Seizures  

 3780 Theft or Destruction of School Property  

 3311 Prohibition of Gang Activities  

 3760 Assault and Battery  



 3720-4 (EMT 2001)  

Topic Model Policy No. Policy Name Current 
Year 

Student 
Harassment 

3295 Hazing, Harassment, Intimidation, Bullying, 
Cyber Bullying, Menacing 

 

3285 Relationship Abuse and Sexual Assault 
Prevention & Response 

 

 3365 Student Sex Offenders  

Student Health 3510 Administering Medication  

 3515 Food Allergy Management  

 3520 Contagious or Infectious Diseases  

 3540 Emergency Care  

 3570 Student Records  

 3525 Immunization Requirements  

 3530 Suicide  

 3770 Students with a Living Will  

Gun-free 
Schools 

3730 Prohibition of Weapons  

Substance 
Abuse- 

3321 Student Drug, Alcohol and Tobacco Use  

tobacco, 
alcohol and 

5846 Employee Drug and Alcohol Use  

other drugs 5847 Employee Drug and Alcohol Testing  

 3400 Extracurricular Activities Drug- Testing 
Program 

 

Suicide 
Prevention 

3530 Suicide  

Drug-free 
School Zones 

3321 Student Drug, Alcohol and Tobacco Use  

 5846 Employee Drug and Alcohol Use  

 5847 Employee Drug and Alcohol Testing  

 3400 Extracurricular Activities Drug- Testing 
Program 
 
  

 



 3720-5 (EMT 2001) 
 

 

Topic Model Policy No. Policy Name Current 
Year 

Building Safety 
Including 
Evacuation 
Drills 

8320 Fire Drills & Evacuation Plans  

9400 Safety Program  

9890 Trespass on School District Properties  

Misc. 2960 Computing Device and Network Acceptable 
Use Policy 

 

 



 
POLICY TITLE: 

 
Distribution of Fund Drive Literature 
Through Students 
 

 
POLICY NO: 4240   

PAGE 1 of 1 
 

 

 4240-1 (ISBA 2013) 

It is the policy of this District to refrain from having the students, as student body members, used 
for collection or dissemination purposes. 
 
Exceptions to this policy will be considered when recognized or student- or school-affiliated 
organizations of the District request permission to participate in such activity. 
 

♦ ♦ ♦ ♦ ♦ ♦ ♦ 
 
Policy History: 
ADOPTED: 8/11/14 
ISBA 
REVISED:  



PROCEDURE TITLE: Veteran’s Preference PROCEDURE NO: 5100P2 
 PAGE 1 of 2 
 

 5100P2-1 (ISBA 05/19 UPDATE)  
 

 
The District shall give preference in hiring, and in the case a reduction in force, consideration for 
a retention, to veterans, unmarried widows and widowers of veterans, and the spouse of any 
veteran who is unable to work in public employment due to a service-connected disability as 
defined by The Uniformed Services Employment and Reemployment Rights Act. Such 
applicants shall be referred to as “preference eligible applicants” throughout this policy. 
 
This preference does not apply to temporary positions or to appointments to the Board. 
 
For the purpose of this policy, “veterans” means any person who has been discharged or released 
from active duty in the armed forces under honorable conditions who served on active duty for at 
least 180 consecutive days.  
 
The District shall post this procedure on the District’s website and shall note on all 
announcements and advertisements of applicable vacancies that preference will be given to 
preference eligible applicants. Applications for qualifying positions shall ask whether the 
applicant is claiming veterans’ preference and whether the applicant has previously claimed such 
a preference. The form shall also indicate what documentation is required to confirm veteran 
status. 
 
Any application for a position submitted by a preference eligible applicant shall be considered, 
provided it is received before a candidate is chosen to fill the position, regardless of whether the 
application is received before the deadline to receive applications. 
 
The District shall interview all preference eligible applicants who qualify for the position for 
which they have applied unless the total number of preference eligible applicants applying for a 
position exceeds ten. 
 
A preference eligible applicant shall be hired in cases where no other employee is more qualified 
or there is no articulable reason to select another candidate.   
 
Appeal Process 
 
If an applicant or employee believes they have been denied preference to which they are entitled 
under this procedure, they may appeal the decision within 35 days of the alleged denial of 
preference by submitting a written request for appeal to the Board clerk. Such request must 
include: 
 

1. The applicant or employee’s full name and mailing address; 
2. A request for either a telephonic or a face-to-face hearing. In the former case, the 

telephone number where a telephonic hearing may be conducted must be included;  
3. The position applied for (if applicable); 
4. A brief statement of the applicant or employee’s basis of eligibility for a preference;  
5. A brief statement of the issues the applicant or employee proposes to raise at the hearing; 

and 



 5100P2-2 (ISBA 05/19 UPDATE)  

6. Any dates or times the petitioner or the petitioner’s attorney cannot be available for a 
hearing. 

 
The Board shall direct the Superintendent or designee to notify the applicant or employee of the 
time and date of the hearing and that the Board shall be the presiding officer at the hearing. Such 
notice shall be provided at least seven days before the hearing and indicate: 
 

1. Whether the meeting will be by phone or in person; 
2. The location of the meeting, if it will be held in person. In person meetings may only be 

held in the city where the position is located unless the parties agree otherwise; and 
3. The address to which relevant documents must be sent. 

 
The hearing shall be held within 35 days of receipt of the request unless good cause to extend the 
hearing is shown by the Board or by the applicant/employee, in which case the hearing must be 
held within 70 days. 
 
Prior to the hearing, each side shall notify the others of the witnesses they intend to call and 
provide one another with copies of any documents to be presented. Evidence may be considered 
or rejected in accordance with IDAPA 21.01.06.103.03. 
 
The applicant or employee may be represented by an attorney, at their own expense, if they 
choose. 
 
The Board shall issue a written order reflecting its decision on the matter within 35 days of the 
hearing.  The order shall include: 
 

1. Specific findings on all major facts at issue;  
2. A reasoned statement in support of the decision;  
3. All other findings and recommendations of the Board;  
4. A preliminary decision finding that a preference was or was not applied by the public 

employer as required by Idaho law; and 
5. The procedure and time limits for filing an appeal to the district court under Section 65-

506, Idaho Code.   
 

♦♦♦♦♦♦ 
Legal Reference:   I.C. § 65-506 Rights and Privileges of Veterans 
    
Procedure History 
ADOPTED: 8/12/19 
ISBA 
REVISED:  



POLICY TITLE: Idaho State Veteran Employment 
Preference 

POLICY NO: 5850   
PAGE 1 of 3 

 

 5850-1 (EMT 2007) 

DEFINITIONS 
 
“Active duty” means, for purposes of veteran’s preference, full-time duty in the active military 
service of the United States. Such term includes full-time training duty, annual training duty, and 
attendance, while in the active military service, at a school designated as a service school by law 
or by the secretary of the military department concerned.  
 
“Disabled veteran” means those honorably discharged veterans who 1) have served on active 
duty in the Armed Forces and have a current service-connected disability of ten percent (10%) or 
more or are receiving compensation related to a service connected disability including retirement 
benefits or pension from the military or the department of veteran affairs; or 2) are Purple Heart 
recipients. 
 
“Initial hire” means the first time an eligible veteran is hired by the District; provided however, 
subsequent separation from the District for any reason will not result in the award of new 
preference with the District. Temporary or casual employment does not qualify as an “initial 
hire”. 
 
“Key employee” means an individual specifically hired for an “at will” position who meets the 
requirements described in I.C. 65-502.  
 
“Service-connected disability” means that the veteran is disabled due to injury or illness that was 
incurred in or aggravated by military service as certified by the federal Veterans Administration 
or an agency of the department of defense. 
 
“Veterans’ preference” shall apply to: 

 
• Veterans who have been discharged or released from active duty in the armed forces under 

honorable conditions provided they have served on active duty for a minimum of one 
hundred eighty (180) consecutive days.  

 
• Disabled veterans, 
 
• The widow or widower of such individuals and who have not remarried, or 
 
• The qualifying spouses of eligible disabled veterans who cannot qualify for any public 

employment because of a service-connected disability. 
 
NOTICE OF PREFERENCE 
 
The District’s employment application forms, announcements, and postings for positions will 
state that preference will be given to eligible veterans. The application form will inquire as to 
whether the applicant is claiming eligibility for such preference and state that the applicant is 



 5850-2 (EMT 2007) 

required to provide proof of such eligibility. The applicant is responsible for providing all 
necessary documentation of his/her eligibility as a veteran at the time of making application. 
 
APPLICANTS ELIGIBLE FOR VETERANS’ PREFERENCE 
 
In all employment of any kind (excluding “key employees”), this District shall give preference 
to eligible veterans as follows: 
 
1. PREFERENCE OVER NON-VETERANS. An applicant who qualifies for a veteran’s 

preference is entitled to a preference in initial application for hiring with the District over 
other applicants for the same position who are not more qualified. 

 
2. COMPETITIVE EXAMINATIONS. If applicants are required to take competitive 

examinations, five (5) percentage points shall be added to the earned rating of any applicant 
who is eligible for veteran’s preference points. The enhanced score shall be used in 
establishing a rating. 

 
3. COMPETITIVE EXAMINATIONS – DISABLED VETERANS. If applicants are required 

to take competitive examinations, ten (10) percentage points shall be added to the earned 
rating of any applicant who is eligible for veterans’ preference points as a disabled veteran. 

 
4. INTERVIEW REQUIREMENTS. Disabled veterans who have a current service- connected 

disability of thirty percent (30%) or more must be offered an interview if they are one of the 
qualified applicants. If applicants are not ranked, the District must offer to interview such 
veterans who fully meet all qualifications for the position. Notwithstanding this subsection, 
the District is not required to interview more than a total of ten (10) applicants regardless of 
the number of such qualified veteran applicants. 

 
EMERGENCY HIRING 
 
In the event of an emergency which may endanger the health, safety, and public welfare, these 
provisions may be dispensed with temporarily, but persons so employed may not be allowed to 
work for a time period of more than ninety (90) days, except as employees who meet all the 
requirements of the veterans’ preference provisions stated above. 
 
PROMOTIONS, TRANSFER, OR REASSIGNMENT 
 
This policy applies only for the purpose of an initial hire by the District. Veterans’ preference 
and any benefits set forth in this policy for eligible veterans are not relevant to and will not be 
considered whenever personnel decisions are made relative to an employee’s promotion, 
transfer, or reassignment within the District. 
 

♦ ♦ ♦ ♦ ♦ ♦ ♦ 
 

Legal Reference: Idaho Code § 65-501, et seq. 



 5850-3 (EMT 2007) 

 
Policy History 
ADOPTED: 09/10/12  
EMT 
REVISED: 8/11/14 
 6/13/16 



POLICY TITLE: Appeal of the Awarding of a Bid 
 

POLICY NO: 7406   
PAGE 1 of 1 

 

 7408-1 

In the event a bidder objects to the award of a contract pursuant to Idaho Code § 67-2805, or 
Idaho Code § 67-2806, the Board shall schedule an informal hearing, either at its next regularly 
scheduled meeting or at a special meeting, wherein the interested parties are provided an 
opportunity to present information to the Board for its consideration.  Upon its review of the 
information presented, the Board shall render a decision that is in the best interests of the 
District, which decision is not appealable. In the event Idaho Code § 67-2805, and/or Idaho Code 
§ 67-2806 is amended by the Legislature, this Policy 7408 is similarly amended without further 
action of the Board. 
 
The term “interested parties” is defined as consisting of:  
 

1. The complaining bidder(s) which was not awarded the contract;  
2. The bidder which was awarded the contract; and  
3. The District’s administrator(s) involved in the bid process and the award of the contract. 

 
♦ ♦ ♦ ♦ ♦ ♦ ♦ 

 
Legal Reference:   I.C. § 67-2805 Procurement of Public Works Construction 
 I.C. § 67-2806 Procuring Services or Personal Property 
 
Policy History: 
ADOPTED: 9/12/16 
 
Revised:  



 8605-1 (ISBA 8/16 UPDATE) 

 
POLICY TITLE: 

 
Retention of District Records 
 

 
POLICY NO: 8605   

PAGE 1 of 9 
 

  
 
In compliance with Idaho Code, the Board of Trustees establishes the following guidelines to 
provide administrative direction pertaining to the retention and/or disposal of District records.  
This schedule likewise identifies the anticipated physical location of where such records may be 
kept or maintained by the District, in addition to the possible document retention of all categories 
of records on the school’s servers and computer systems.     
 
The District’s Public Records Coordinator (Board Clerk), in conjunction with the 
Superintendent, or designee, is responsible for the maintenance, safeguarding and destruction of 
the District’s records.  Performance of such duties shall be in cooperation with the District’s 
Business Office, Director of Maintenance and Transportation, Technology Coordinator, the 
Principals at the school’s buildings and other administrative personnel employed by the District.  
However, each school employee is likewise responsible for having knowledge of this policy and 
the requirement to safeguard the District’s records, electronic or otherwise, consistent with the 
chart below.  
 
The District’s Public Records Coordinator shall work in conjunction with the District’s 
Technology department to assure that the school’s staff is aware of the routine destruction of 
electronic District records, including emails, such that they are able to assure that the District’s 
public records are retained consistent with this schedule, regardless of whether they are 
maintained in a hard copy or an electronic copy.   In such a process, the District’s employees 
need to retain District records included on the schedule below, particularly student educational 
records, personnel records, and investigative records, in a format that is not part of the District’s 
routine electronic records destruction and/or notify the technology personnel of the District that a 
particular document is not to be destroyed as part of the routine destruction of electronic records. 
 
Unless otherwise prohibited by applicable law, all District records may be maintained 
electronically and/or in hard physical copy.  
 
Method of Destroying Official Records 
 
The District’s official records, and any copy thereof that may be deemed to be confidential 
and/or not intended to be disseminated to the public, will be shredded before disposal.  
 
Destruction of Electronic Mail/e-mail 
 
The District will store electronic mail/e-mails for a maximum minimum period of 500 days 10 
years. All email not otherwise maintained in the employee’s email account will be automatically 
deleted from the District’s system at the end of this retention period. It is the responsibility of 
every district employee to assure that District documents that need to be retained for a longer 
period of time due to federal law, state law or the provisions of this policy are retained 



 8605-2 (ISBA 8/16 UPDATE) 

accordingly and in a different format than electronic mail.  An employee’s failure to retain 
District documents accordingly could serve as a basis for discipline, up to and including possible 
termination. 
 
Suspending of Destroying Official Records 
 
The District will immediately cease the destruction of all relevant records, including electronic 
records, even if destruction is authorized by an approved Retention Schedule, for the following 
reasons:   
 

1. If the District receives a Freedom of Information Act (FOIA) request; 
2. If the District believes that an investigation or litigation is imminent; or  
3. If the District is notified that an investigation or litigation has commenced. 

 
The Public Records Coordinator, Superintendent, and Board Clerk are responsible for carrying 
out this policy. 
 
If relevant records exist in electronic formats (such as email, digital images, word processed 
documents, databases, backup tapes, etc.) the District’s Administrative personnel shall notify its 
information technology staff  to cease the destruction of records relating to the subject matter of 
the suit/potential suit or investigation.  Failure to cease the destruction of relevant records could 
result in penalties against the District. 
 
District records shall be retained and/or disposed of as follows:  

 
DISTRICT RECORDS RETENTION SCHEDULE  

Retention Codes  
AC—After closed, terminated, completed, expired, 

settled, or last date of contact 
FE—Fiscal Year End (June 30th) 
 

LA—Life of Asset 
PM—Permanent  
US—Until Superseded 

DO – District 
Office 
SB – School 
Buildings 
DM – District 
Maintenance 
DT – District 
Transportation 

RECORDS DESCRIPTION RETENTION PERIOD  
ADMINISTRATION—ATTENDANCE—ANNUAL  
ATTENDANCE SUMMARIES BY BUILDING 

PM DO, SB 

ADMINISTRATION—ATTENDANCE—
Enrollment attendance data 

3 years DO, SB 

ADMINISTRATION—BALLOTS AND OATHS OF 
ELECTION—until canvassed and recorded in the 
minutes 

Not less than 8 months 
following election 

DO 

ADMINISTRATION—BALLOTS FOR BOND 
ELECTIONS 

a. Not less than 60 days after 
bonds have been delivered to 
purchaser 

b. Not less than 8 months 
following bond election 

DO 

ADMINISTRATION—CONTRACTS AND 
LEASES 

AC +6 years DO 



 8605-3 (ISBA 8/16 UPDATE) 

DISTRICT RECORDS RETENTION SCHEDULE  
Retention Codes  

AC—After closed, terminated, completed, expired, 
settled, or last date of contact 

FE—Fiscal Year End (June 30th) 
 

LA—Life of Asset 
PM—Permanent  
US—Until Superseded 

DO – District 
Office 
SB – School 
Buildings 
DM – District 
Maintenance 
DT – District 
Transportation 

RECORDS DESCRIPTION RETENTION PERIOD  
ADMINISTRATION—GENERAL 
CORRESPONDENCE 

3 years DO, SB 

ADMINISTRATION—DONATION/GIFT 
RECORDS 

PM DO, SB 

ADMINISTRATION—BOARD MEETINGS—
AGENDA AND MINUTES:  Official minutes and 
agenda of open meetings 

PM DO 

ADMINISTRATION—BOARD MEETINGS—
CLOSED:  Certified agendas or tape recordings of 
closed meetings 

PM—Restricted Access DO 

ADMINISTRATION—ORGANIZATION CHARTS:  
Any documentation that shows program accountability 

PM DO, SB, DM, DT 

ADMINISTRATION—EDUCATION PROGRAM 
REVIEW RECORDS 

AC+3 years DO, SB 

ADMINISTRATION—OFFICIAL STATE 
DEPARTMENT REPORTS 

PM DO 

ADMINISTRATION—SCHOOL CERTIFICATION 
REPORTS 

PM DO 

ANNUAL REPORTS PM DO 
APPEAL AND REVIEW RECORDS—Records may 
include but are not limited to narrative history or 
description of appeal; minutes and testimony; exhibits; 
reports and findings of fact; final orders, opinions, 
conclusions, or decisions; audio recordings; hearing 
schedules and lists of participants; and related 
correspondence and documentation. 

PM DO 

BOARD MEMBER RECORDS—Series documents 
board activities and serves as a reference source for 
board members.  Records may include but are not 
limited to correspondence, plans, statements of goals 
and objectives, minutes, committee reports, budgets, 
financial statements, reports, and other reference 
material.  Records are often compiled in a notebook for 
each member.   

AC+3 years 
NOTE:  Some materials may 
warrant long-term retention.  
These materials should be 
reviewed for archival materials. 

DO 

BOARD RECORDS—Series documents the official 
proceedings of the board meetings.  Records may 
include agendas; minutes; meeting notices; items for 
board action; contested case hearings schedules; 
committee reports; exhibits; and related 
correspondence and documentation.  Records may also 
include audio recordings of meetings used to prepare 
summaries. 

PM DO 



 8605-4 (ISBA 8/16 UPDATE) 

COMPUTER SYSTEMS-BACKUPS—Backups on 
tape, disk, cd, dvd, etc.  
CAUTION:  Records stored in this format can be 
subpoenaed during litigation. 

US or 1 year DO 

EQUIPMENT-HISTORY FILE—Equipment service 
agreements, includes maintenance agreements, 
installation, and repair logs, etc. 

LA+3 years DO, DM, DT 

EQUIPMENT MANUALS—Instruction and 
operating manuals 

LA DO, SB, DM, DT 

EQUIPMENT WARRANTIES AC+1 year DO, SB, DM, DT 
FACILITIES OPERATIONS-APPRAISALS—
Building or property 

3 years DO 

FACILITIES OPERATIONS-BUILDINGS PLANS 
AND SPECIFICATIONS—Includes architectural and 
engineering drawings, etc. 

PM 
For leased structures retain AC+2 
years 

DO, DM 

FACILITIES OPERATIONS-BUILDINGS, 
CONSTRUCTION CONTRACT, INSPECTION 
RECORDS AND PROJECT FILES—Building 
construction contracts, surety bonds and inspection 
records, Planning, design, construction records & all 
bids, etc. 

LA DO, SB, DM 

FACILITY OPERATIONS—DAMAGE REPORTS; 
LOST AND STOLEN PROPERTY REPORTS 

FE+3 years DO, SB, DM, DT 

FACILITY OPERATIONS-PROPERTY DISPOSAL 
RECORDS—Documenting disposal of inventoried 
property 

PM DO 

FACILITY OPERATIONS-PROPERTY 
MANAGEMENT SEQUENTIAL NUMBER LOGS—
Property logs 

US+3 years DO, SB, DM 

FACILITY OPERATIONS-SECURITY ACCESS 
RECORDS—Documents the issuance of keys, 
identification cards, passes, passwords, etc. 

AC+2 years 
AC=Until superseded, date of 
expiration or date of termination, 
whichever is sooner 

DO, SB, DM 

FACILITY OPERATIONS-SURPLUS PROPERTY 
SALE REPORTS 

PM DO, DM 

FACILITY OPERATIONS-UTILITY USAGE 
REPORTS 

1 year DO, DM 

FACILITY OPERATIONS-VEHICLE OPERATION 
LOGS 

1 year DO, DT 

FISCAL-ACCOUNTS PAYABLE/RECEIVABLE 
LEDGERS 

FE+3 years DO, SB 

FISCAL-ANNUAL FINANCIAL REPORTS PM DO, SB, DM, DT 
FISCAL-ANNUAL OPERATING BUDGETS FE+3 years DO, SB, DM, DT 
FISCAL-APPROPRIATION REQUESTS—Includes 
any supporting documentation in the appropriation 
request 

FE+3 years DO, SB, DM, DT 

FISCAL-FINAL AUDIT REPORTS PM DO, SB 
FISCAL-BANK STATEMENTS FE+3 years DO, SB 
FISCAL-CANCELLED CHECKS—
Stubs/Warrants/Drafts 

FE+3 years DO, SB 

FISCAL-CAPITAL ASSET RECORDS LA+3 years DO, SB, DM, DT 
FISCAL-CASH RECORDS—Cash deposit slips; cash 
receipts log 

FE+3 years DO, SB 

FISCAL-DEEDS AND EASEMENTS—Proof of 
ownership and right-of-way on property 

PM DO 



 8605-5 (ISBA 8/16 UPDATE) 

FISCAL-detail chart of accounts—One for all 
accounts in use for a fiscal year 

FE+3 years DO, SB 

FISCAL-EXPENDITURE JOURNAL OR 
REGISTER 

FE+3 years DO, SB 

FISCAL-EXPENDITURE VOUCHERS—Travel, 
payearsoll, 
etc.
  

FE+3 years DO, SB, DM, DT 

FISCAL-EXTERNAL REPORTS—Special purpose, 
i.e. federal financial reports, salary reports, etc. 

FE+3 years DO, SB, DM, DT 

FISCAL-FEDERAL TAX RECORDS—Includes 
FICA 
records
  

AC+4 years 
AC=Tax due date, date the claim 
is filed, or date tax is paid 
whichever is later 

DO 

FISCAL-FEDERAL FUNDING RECORDS—Title I; 
Chapter 2; Title VI-B 

FE+5 years 
Or until all pending audits or 
reviews are completed 

DO 

FISCAL—FEDERAL—USDA AC+3 years 
AC=submission of final 
expenditure 

DO 

FISCAL-GENERAL LEDGERS; GENERAL 
JOURNAL VOUCHERS 

FE+3 years DO, SB 

FISCAL-GRANTS—State and Federal AC+3 years 
AC=End of grant or satisfaction 
of all uniform administrative 
requirements for the grant 
CAUTION:  Retention 
requirements may vary depending 
on the specific federal funding 
agency 

DO, SB 

FISCAL-INSURANCE CLAIM FILES AC+3 years 
AC=Resolution of claim 

DO 

FISCAL-INSURANCE POLICIES—all types AC+5 years 
AC=expiration or termination of 
policy according to its terms 

DO 

FISCAL-LONG-TERM LIABILITY RECORDS—
Bonds, etc 

AC+4 years 
AC=retirement of debt 

DO 

FISCAL-RECEIPTS JOURNAL OR REGISTER FE+3 years DO, SB, DM, DT 
FISCAL-RECONCILIATIONS FE+3 years DO, SB 
FISCAL-REIMBURSABLE ACTIVITIES—Requests 
& approval for reimbursed expenses for travel, 
training, etc. 

FE+3 years DO, SB 

FISCAL-RETURNED CHECKS—Uncollectable 
warrants or drafts 

AC+3 years 
AC=After deemed uncollectible 

DO, SB 

FISCAL-SIGNATURE AUTHORIZATIONS—
Records authorizing an employee to initiate financial 
transactions for agency.  Also, spending authority 
limits 

US+FE+3 years DO 

LEGAL-LITIGATION FILES-- PM 
CAUTION:  May contain 
attorney-client privileged 
information 

DO, SB, DM, DT 



 8605-6 (ISBA 8/16 UPDATE) 

LEGAL-OPEN RECORDS REQUESTS—
documentation relating to approved or denied requests 
for records under Idaho Public Records Law 

PM DO 

LEGAL-OPINIONS AND ADVICE—Does not 
include legal opinions or advice rendered on a matter 
in litigation or with regard to pending litigation 

PM 
CAUTION:  May contain 
attorney-client privileged 
information 

DO, SB 

NEWS OR PRESS RELEASES PM DO, SB 
PERSONNEL-ACCUMULATED LEAVE 
ADJUSTMENT REQUEST—Used to create and 
adjust employee leave balances 

FE+5 years DO, SB, DM, DT 

PERSONNEL-APPLICATIONS FOR 
EMPLOYMENT—HIRED—Applications, etc 
required by employment advertisement 

AC+5 years 
AC=Termination of employment 

DO, SB, DM, DT 

PERSONNEL-APPLICATIONS FOR 
EMPLOYMENT—NOT HIRED—Applications, 
resumes, etc. required by employment advertisement 

AC+2 years 
AC=Date position is filled 

DO, SB, DM,DT 

PERSONNEL-BENEFIT PLANS US+5 years DO 
PERSONNEL-COMPLAINT RECORDS—
Complaints received and records documenting their 
resolution 

FE+3 years 
CAUTION:  If a complaint 
becomes the subject of litigation, 
it is subject to a longer retention 
period 

DO, SB, DM, DT 

PERSONNEL-CORRECTIVE ACTION—those 
actions which do not affect pay, status or tenure and 
are imposed to correct or improve job performance 

PM 
CAUTION:  If during the 
retention period these records are 
used to support personnel 
disciplinary action, the records 
should be retained according to 
Personnel Disciplinary Action 
series. 

DO, SB, DM, DT 

PERSONNEL-DISCIPLINARY ACTION 
DOCUMENTATION—those actions that affect pay or 
status.  They include demotion, dismissal, etc. 

PM 
 

DO, SB, DM, DT 

PERSONNEL-EMPLOYEE STATEMENTS 
(Affidavits)—for insurance, personnel or other uses for 
which Administration has sought such statements 

PM 
 

DO, SB, DM, DT 

PERSONNEL-EMPLOYEE BENEFITS—documents 
relating to selection of benefits other than insurance 

US+ 5 years DO  

PERSONNEL-EMPLOYEE COUNSELING 
RECORDS—Notes, etc. relating to job-specific 
counseling 

PM 
 

DO, SB, DM, DT 

PERSONNEL-EMPLOYEE DEDUCTION 
AUTHORIZATIONS—documents relating to all 
deductions of pay 

AC+5 years 
AC=After termination of 
employee or after amendment, 
expiration or termination of 
authorization, whichever is 
sooner. 

DO 

PERSONNEL-EMPLOYEE EARNINGS RECORDS PM DO 
PERSONNEL-EMPLOYEE INSURANCE 
RECORDS—District copy of selection records by 
employees of insurance offered by the District 

US+ 5 years DO 

PERSONNEL-EMPLOYEE RECOGNITION 
RECORDS—Awards, incentives, etc. 

PM 
 

DO, SB, DM, DT 

PERSONNEL-EMPLOYMENT ANNOUNCEMENT 2 years DO 



 8605-7 (ISBA 8/16 UPDATE) 

PERSONNEL-EMPLOYMENT CONTRACTS Original dates of hire +50 years DO 
PERSONNEL-EMPLOYMENT ELIGIBILITY—
Documentation or verification of Federal report form 
INS I-9 

PM 
 

DO 

PERSONNEL-EMPLOYMENT SELECTION 
RECORDS—all records that document the selection 
process: i.e. polygraph, physicals, interview notes, etc. 

2 years 
CAUTION:  Does not include 
criminal history checks 

DO, SB, DM, DT 

PERSONNEL-FORMER EMPLOYEE 
VERIFICATION RECORDS—minimum information 
includes name, social security number, exact dates of 
employment and last known address 

PM DO 

PERSONNEL-GRIEVANCE RECORDS—review of 
employee grievances against policies and working 
conditions, etc.  Includes record of actions taken. 

PM 
 

DO, SB, DM, DT 

PERSONNEL-HIRING PROCESS—CRIMINAL 
HISTORY CHECKS—criminal history record 
information on job applications 

PM DO 

PERSONNEL-JOB PROCEDURE RECORD/JOB 
DESCRIPTION—any document detailing duties of 
positions on position-by-position basis 

US+8 years DO, SB, DM, DT 

PERSONNEL-LEAVE STATUS REPORT—
cumulative report for each pay cycle showing leave 
status 

FE+3 years DO 

PERSONNEL-LIABILITY RELEASE FORM—
statements of employees, patrons, etc. who have 
released the district from liability 

PM  DO 

PERSONNEL-LICENSE AND DRIVING RECORD 
CHECK 

PM DO, DT 

PERSONNEL-OVERTIME AUTHORIZATION & 
SCHEDULE 

5 years DO, SB, DM, DT 

PERSONNEL-PAYROLL-DIRECT DEPOSIT 
APPLICATION/AUTHORIZATION 

US+3 years DO 

PERSONNEL-PAYROLL-INCOME ADJUSTMENT 
AUTHORIZATION---used to adjust gross pay, FICA, 
retirement or compute taxes 

US+3 years DO 

PERSONNEL-PERFORMANCE EVALUATION PM DO. SB, DM, DT 
PERSONNEL-PERSI ENROLLMENT FILE PM DO 
PERSONNEL-PERSI RECORD OF HOURS 
WORKED—Irregular help, half-time or greater 

Date of hire +50 years DO 

PERSONNEL-PERSI TERMINATION RECORD PM DO 
PERSONNEL-PERSONNEL INFORMATION—
documents that officially change pay, titles, benefits, 
etc. 

PM DO 

PERSONNEL-POLICY AND PROCEDURES 
MANUAL—any manual, etc. that establishes standard 
employment procedures 

PM DO, SB, DM, DT 

PERSONNEL-RESUME-UNSOLICITED 1 year DO, SB, DM, DT 
PERSONNEL-SICK LEAVE POOL 
DOCUMENTATION—requests submitted, approvals, 
number of hours transferred in and out, etc. 

LA+3 years DO 

PERSONNEL-TIME CARD AND TIME SHEET PM DO, SB, DM, DT 
PERSONNEL-TIME OFF AND/OR SICK LEAVE 
REQUEST 

FE+3 years DO, SB, DM, DT 



 8605-8 (ISBA 8/16 UPDATE) 

PERSONNEL-TRAINING AND EDUCATIONAL 
ACHIEVEMENT RECORD-INDIVIDUAL—records 
documenting training, testing or continued education 

PM DO, SB, DM, DT 

PERSONNEL-UNEMPLOYMENT CLAIM 
RECORD 

5 years DO 

PERSONNEL-UNEMPLOYMENT 
COMPENSATION RECORDS 

AC+5 years DO 

PERSONNEL-W-2 & W-4 FORMS 5 years from date of termination  DO 
PERSONNEL—WORKER’S COMPENSATION 
POLICIES 

AC+10 years 
AC=expiration of policy 

DO 

PROCUREMENT-PERFORMANCE BOND—bonds 
posted by individuals or entities under contract with 
District 

PM DO 

PROCUREMENT-PURCHASING LOG—Log, etc. 
providing a record of purchase orders issued, orders 
received, etc. 

FE+3 years DO, SB, DM, DT 

PROCUREMENT-BID DOCUMENTATION—
includes bid requisition/authorizations, invitation to 
bid, bid specifications, and evaluations 

FE+3 years 
CAUTION:  If a formal written 
contract is the result of a bid, etc., 
the bid and its supporting 
documentation must be retained 
for the same period as the 
contract. 

DO, DM, DT 

RECORDS MANAGEMENT—RECORDS 
RETENTION SCHEDULE; DISPOSITION LOG 
(listing records destroyed or transferred); CONTROL 
MATERIALS (indexes, card files, etc.); 
DESTRUCTION APPROVAL SIGN-OFFS 

PM DO, SB, DM, DT 

SAFETY-ACCIDENT REPORTS 8 years* 
For Minors, 8 years after minor 
reaches age of 18 

DO, SB, DM, DT 

SAFETY-DISASTER PREPAREDNESS AND 
RECOVERY PLANS 

PM DO, SB, DM, DT 

SAFETY-EVACUATION PLANS PM DO, SB 
SAFETY-FIRE ORDERS—issued by fire marshal to 
correct deficiencies in compliance with the fire code 

AC+3 years 
AC=deficiency corrected 

DO, SB, DM 

SAFETY-HAZARDOUS MATERIALS DISPOSAL 
RECORDS—Material safety data sheets must be kept 
for those chemicals currently in use that are affected by 
the Hazard Communication Standard in accordance 
with 29 CFR § 1910.1200(g). 

PM DO, DM 

SAFETY-INCIDENT REPORTS—Reports 
concerning incidents which, upon investigation, were 
of a non-criminal nature 

3 years (or 30 years*) 
*Exposure records require 30 year 
retention per 29 CFR § 
1910.1020(d)(ii)(B)Footnote(1) 

DO, SB, DM, DT 

SAFETY-INSPECTION RECORDS—Fire, safety, 
and other inspection records of facilities and equipment 

AC+3 years 
AC=Date of the correction of the 
deficiency, if the inspection report 
reveals a deficiency. 

DO, SB, DM 

SAFETY-MATERIAL DATA SAFETY SHEETS 30 years after the end of use of 
the substance 

DO, DM 

SAFETY-WORKPLACE CHEMICAL LISTS 30 years DO, SB, DM 
STUDENTS-EDUCATION RECORDS—Student’s 
name, birth date, last address, dates of attendance, 
graduation date and grades earned 

PM DO, SB 



 8605-9 (ISBA 8/16 UPDATE) 

STUDENTS-SPECIAL EDUCATION RECORDS—
educational records, including eligibility 
documentation and IEPs 

FE+6 years DO, SB 

STUDENTS-MEDICAID RECORDS-claims, 
reimbursements, and supporting documentation 

FE +5 years DO, SB 

VEHICLE-INSPECTION, REPAIR AND 
MAINTENANCE RECORDS 

LA+1 year DO, DT 

VEHICLE-TITLE AND REGISTRATION 1 year DO, DT 
VOLUNTEER RECORDS—records may include 
recruitment and selection records, volunteer personnel 
and intern personnel information forms, intern 
agreements, volunteer and intern time records, 
emergency notification forms, insurance 
documentation and correspondence 

AC+3 year 
AC=End of term of volunteer or 
intern 

DO, SB 

WEBSITE/WEB PAGES—
INTERNET/INTRANET—system development 
documentation for initial setup; subsequent changes 
and content of pages 

PM DO, SB 

 
In the event that District records do not correspond to any of the above listed categories, the 
Superintendent will determine the period of retention for a particular record.  
 
 
Legal References: I.C. § 33-407 Return of Canvass of Elections 

I.C. § 33-508 Duties of Clerk 
I.C. § 33-701(8) Fiscal Year—Payment and Accounting of Funds 
I.C. § 56-209h Administrative Remedies 
I.C. § 74-119 Agency Guidelines 
SDE Idaho Special Education Manual Revised 2009, Chapter 11, Section E 
SDE Administrator’s Handbook  1.43 
Federal Regulation 
Idaho Records Management Guide, August, 2013 
 

Policy History: 
Adopted on: 8/11/14 
Revised on:  1/11/16 
  10/10/16 


	Policy Update Letter 14 October 2019
	1500 Board Meetings
	UMeeting Defined
	URegular Meetings
	UEmergency Meetings
	UBudget Meetings
	USpecial Meetings
	UExecutive Sessions

	1610 Trustee Conflict of Interest
	2335 Digital Citizenship and Safety Education
	UPolicy History:

	2435 Advanced Opportunities
	UDefinitions
	UFast Forward Program
	UChallenging Courses
	UAdvanced Opportunities Scholarship

	2435F Advanced Opportunities Participation Form
	4120 Uniform Grievance Procedure
	REVISED: 12/14/15
	9/12/16

	4530F Crowdfunding Request Form
	Crowdfunding Request Form

	5275 Adult Sexual Misconduct
	UReporting Sexual Misconduct
	UFalse Reports
	UDistribution of Policy and Training

	5395 Whistleblower
	UDisclosure and Investigation
	UComplaints of Retaliation

	5750 Employing Retired Teachers & Administrators
	8170P District-owned Vehicles
	3010P Open Enrollment 
	3430 Distribution of Fund Drive Literature through Students
	3720 School Climate Review 
	♦ ♦ ♦ ♦ ♦
	Legal Reference:  Idaho Code § 33-1612
	IDAPA 08.02.03.160
	ANNUAL POLICY REVIEW CHECKLIST


	4240 Distribution of Fund Drive Literature through students
	5100P1 Veteran's Preference
	UAppeal Process

	5850 Idaho State Veteran Employment Preference
	DEFINITIONS
	NOTICE OF PREFERENCE
	APPLICANTS ELIGIBLE FOR VETERANS’ PREFERENCE
	EMERGENCY HIRING
	PROMOTIONS, TRANSFER, OR REASSIGNMENT
	Legal Reference: Idaho Code § 65-501, et seq.

	7406 Appeal of the Awarding of a Bid
	8605 Retention of District Records
	Retention of District Records
	UMethod of Destroying Official Records
	UDestruction of Electronic Mail/e-mail
	Suspending of Destroying Official Records


